
 
 
 
 

O n e  O l d e  H a l f  D a y  R o a d  
L i n c o l n s h i r e ,  I L  6 0 0 6 9  
www. l i n co l n sh i re i l . g ov  

AGENDA 
REGULAR VILLAGE BOARD MEETING 

Village Hall – Board Room 
Monday, September 9, 2019 

7:00 p.m. 
Reasonable accommodations/auxiliary aids will be provided to enable persons with disabilities to 

effectively participate in any public meetings of the Board.  Please contact the Village Administrative 
Office (847.883.8600) 48 hours in advance if you need special accommodations to attend.  Regular 

Village Board Meetings will not proceed past 10:30 p.m. unless there is a consensus of the majority of the 
Trustees to do so. 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
1.0 ROLL CALL 
 
2.0 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3.0 REPORTS OF OFFICERS           
 3.1 Mayor’s Report 
  3.11 Proclamation Recognizing September 9 through September 13, 2019 as 

Chamber of Commerce Week in the Village of Lincolnshire 
  
 3.2 Village Clerk’s Report 
 
 3.3   Village Treasurer's Report 
 
 3.4 Village Manager's Report  
 
4.0   PAYMENT OF BILLS 

4.1   Bills Presented for Payment on September 9, 2019 in the amount of $286,448.14 
 
5.0  CITIZENS WISHING TO ADDRESS THE BOARD (on agenda items only) 
 
6.0  PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
    
7.0  CONSENT AGENDA 

Items on the Consent Agenda will be approved by one motion. If a Trustee wishes to 
discuss any item, it will be pulled from the Consent Agenda and discussed under 
“Unfinished Business”. 

  
7.1 Approval of August 26, 2019 Regular Village Board Meeting Minutes 

 
7.2 Approval of August 26, 2019 Committee of the Whole Meeting Minutes 

 
7.3 Approval of an Internal Fee Waiver – Directional & Identification Signs (Adlai E. 

Stevenson High School – District 125) 
 

8.0 ITEMS OF GENERAL BUSINESS 
8.1 Planning, Zoning & Land Use 

            
    
  

 



Page 2 
AGENDA - Regular Village Board Meeting  
September 9, 2019 
 

8.2 Finance and Administration 
8.3 Public Works 

 
8.4 Police 

   8.41 Approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement between the State of 
Illinois, Illinois Department of Transportation (IDOT) and Village of 
Lincolnshire Sustained Traffic Enforcement Program (STEP) Grant for 
Federal Fiscal Year 2020 (Waiver of First Reading – Village of 
Lincolnshire) 
 

8.5 Parks and Recreation 
8.6 Judiciary and Personnel 

  
9.0  REPORTS OF SPECIAL COMMITTEES 
10.0 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
11.0 NEW BUSINESS 
12.0 ADJOURNMENT 



 
PROCLAMATION RECOGNIZING SEPTEMBER 9 THROUGH SEPTEMBER 13, 2019 

AS CHAMBER OF COMMERCE WEEK IN THE VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE  
 

 
 WHEREAS, the Buffalo Grove Lincolnshire Chamber of Commerce has worked with 
the businesses, merchants, and industry as a joint Chamber since 2014 to advance the 
civic, economic, industrial, professional and cultural life of the Villages of Lincolnshire and 
Buffalo Grove, and 
 

WHEREAS, chambers of commerce have contributed to the civic and economic life 
of Illinois for 181 years since the founding of the Galena Chamber of Commerce in 1838, 
and 
 

WHEREAS, this year marks the 100th anniversary of the founding of the Illinois 
Chamber of Commerce, the state’s leading broad-based business organization; 
 

WHEREAS, the chamber of commerce and its members provide citizens with a 
strong business environment that increases employment, the retail trade and commerce, 
and industrial growth in order to make the Village of Lincolnshire a better place to live, and  
 

WHEREAS, the chamber of commerce encourages the growth of existing 
industries, services, and commercial firms and encourages new firms and individuals to 
locate in the Village of Lincolnshire, and 
 

WHEREAS, the State of Illinois is the home to international chambers of commerce, 
the Great Lakes Region Office of the U.S. Chamber of Commerce, the Illinois Chamber of 
Commerce and more than 400 local chambers of commerce, and 
 

WHEREAS, this year marks the 104th anniversary of the Illinois Association of 
Chamber of Commerce Executives, a professional development organization for the 
chamber of commerce professionals; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Elizabeth J. Brandt, Mayor of the Village of Lincolnshire, 
proclaim September 9 through September 13, 2019, as Chamber of Commerce Week in 
the Village of Lincolnshire and call its significance to the citizens of the Village of 
Lincolnshire. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I sign my name this 9th day of September, 2019. 
                   
 
 
____________________________  _____________________________ 
Elizabeth J. Brandt      Barbara Mastandrea 
Mayor       Village Clerk 
    
 



Agenda Item
4.1

Column1 Column2
General Fund 182,970.85$         
Water & Sewer Fund 32,266.95$           
Motor Fuel Tax
Water & Sewer Improvement Fund 40,465.94$           
Fraud, Alcohol, Drug Enforcement
Vehicle Maintenance Fund 7,862.12$            
E 911 Fund
Park Development Fund
Sedgebrook SSA
General Capital Fund 22,882.28$           

GRAND TOTAL 286,448.14$         

                           ________________________________

VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE

BILLS PRESENTED FOR PAYMENT
09/09/2019

Brad Burke, Village Manager

V:\Finance\Dept\Accounts Payable\Prelist_APBankTrf.xlsx



CUSTOM INVOICE REPORT FOR VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE 1/6Page:09/05/2019 11:55 AM
User: npanos
DB: Lincolnshire

INVOICE DUE DATES 08/27/2019 - 09/09/2019
JOURNALIZED

BOTH OPEN AND PAID

AMOUNTDESCRIPTION
INVOICE
NUMBER
VENDOR NAME: AEREX PEST CONTROL SERVICES, INC.

55.00Pest Control Services - Public Works2240385
55.00Pest Control Services - Village Hall2286328
75.00Yellow Jackets Nest @ Village Hall2292530

185.00TOTAL VENDOR AEREX PEST CONTROL SERVICES, IN

VENDOR NAME: AMERICAN PRINTING TECHNOLOGIES
925.6908 2019 UB Postage19-LS08-P
465.0008 2019 UB Print Service19-LS08
930.6409 2019 UB Postage19-LS09-P
465.0009 2019 UB Print Service19-LS09

2,786.33TOTAL VENDOR AMERICAN PRINTING TECHNOLOGIES

VENDOR NAME: AMERICAN VACTOR SERVICES
2,275.00Spring Lake Park Drainage Issues21180

2,275.00TOTAL VENDOR AMERICAN VACTOR SERVICES

VENDOR NAME: AMERI-TEX INC.
15.00Embroider Vest Covers - Clark122930

15.00TOTAL VENDOR AMERI-TEX INC.

VENDOR NAME: ARTHUR CLESEN, INC.
56.93New Sprayer for Organic Herbicide346740

56.93TOTAL VENDOR ARTHUR CLESEN, INC.

VENDOR NAME: BADE SUPPLY
153.50Drink Stock29002

153.50TOTAL VENDOR BADE SUPPLY

VENDOR NAME: BADGER METER
164.70Beacon Meter Reading80037576

164.70TOTAL VENDOR BADGER METER

VENDOR NAME: BAXTER & WOODMAN INC.
2,974.34Resurfacing Engineering Services0208066

2,974.34TOTAL VENDOR BAXTER & WOODMAN INC.

VENDOR NAME: BEHM ENTERPRISES, IN
9,850.00Sanitary Point Repair - 5 Brittany & 13 Mayfair2316

9,850.00TOTAL VENDOR BEHM ENTERPRISES, IN

VENDOR NAME: BOLLINGER, LACH & ASSOC
20,243.40Crosstown Watermain Phase III19764-5

20,243.40TOTAL VENDOR BOLLINGER, LACH & ASSOC

VENDOR NAME: BUCK BROS., INC.
71.922 Cycle Gas231649

71.92TOTAL VENDOR BUCK BROS., INC.

VENDOR NAME: CHICAGO TRIBUNE
413.402019 Subscription2019

413.40TOTAL VENDOR CHICAGO TRIBUNE

VENDOR NAME: CHRISTOPHER B BURKE ENGINEERING LTD
3,924.75Village Wide Drainage Study Professional Services 152669

3,924.75TOTAL VENDOR CHRISTOPHER B BURKE ENGINEERIN

VENDOR NAME: CINTAS CORPORATION #47P
99.35Weekly Uniform Rental - Public Works4028595485
99.35Weekly Uniform Rental - Public Works4029101408

198.70TOTAL VENDOR CINTAS CORPORATION #47P



CUSTOM INVOICE REPORT FOR VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE 2/6Page:09/05/2019 11:55 AM
User: npanos
DB: Lincolnshire

INVOICE DUE DATES 08/27/2019 - 09/09/2019
JOURNALIZED

BOTH OPEN AND PAID

AMOUNTDESCRIPTION
INVOICE
NUMBER
VENDOR NAME: CIORBA GROUP

7,561.54Buffalo Grove Water Interconnection Construction 00024368

7,561.54TOTAL VENDOR CIORBA GROUP

VENDOR NAME: COMED
289.63Rate 23 Street Lighting 7-23-19 to 8-21-193427049011-08-19

289.63TOTAL VENDOR COMED

VENDOR NAME: CONCENTRIC INTEGRATION, LLC
2,270.10HPWTP/LINCOLNSHIRE Comm.0207911

2,270.10TOTAL VENDOR CONCENTRIC INTEGRATION, LLC

VENDOR NAME: CORPORATE WELLNESS PARTNERS LLC
271.00Pre-Employment and random drug screens - Clause00004401-00

271.00TOTAL VENDOR CORPORATE WELLNESS PARTNERS L

VENDOR NAME: DAVEY RESOURCE GROUP
227.00Treatment for Hawthorn & Crab Trees913565599

227.00TOTAL VENDOR DAVEY RESOURCE GROUP

VENDOR NAME: DEERFIELD VILLAGE
20,691.58Warning Siren Migration, Upgrade Starcom P25, an43967

20,691.58TOTAL VENDOR DEERFIELD VILLAGE

VENDOR NAME: DORNER COMPANY
3,150.00Valve Maintenance Reservoirs149315

3,150.00TOTAL VENDOR DORNER COMPANY

VENDOR NAME: DUSTCATCHERS & A LOGO MAT INC
14.00Floor Mat Rental - Village Hall64242
59.50Floor Mat Rental - Public Works64243
59.50Floor Mat Rental - Public Works64691
14.00Floor Mat Rental - Village Hall64690

147.00TOTAL VENDOR DUSTCATCHERS & A LOGO MAT INC

VENDOR NAME: ECO CLEAN MAINTENANCE, INC.
2,985.00Janitorial Services 8-1-19 to 8-31-198108

2,985.00TOTAL VENDOR ECO CLEAN MAINTENANCE, INC.

VENDOR NAME: FEDEX
66.45Overnight ship test results to IEPA670691705

66.45TOTAL VENDOR FEDEX

VENDOR NAME: FIRST COMMUNICATIONS
279.9207 2019- T-1 Line118076515

279.92TOTAL VENDOR FIRST COMMUNICATIONS

VENDOR NAME: FOREMAN PETER
229.81Senior Citizen Property Tx Relief Refund2018

229.81TOTAL VENDOR FOREMAN PETER

VENDOR NAME: FOREMAN, JD
601.00New Storm Install325736

601.00TOTAL VENDOR FOREMAN, JD

VENDOR NAME: GEWALT HAMILTON ASSOCIATES
676.00Engineering Support for Permits3794.100-26

3,067.00ITEP Riverwoods Road Professional Services 07-014904.003-13

3,743.00TOTAL VENDOR GEWALT HAMILTON ASSOCIATES

VENDOR NAME: GRAINGER, INC.



CUSTOM INVOICE REPORT FOR VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE 3/6Page:09/05/2019 11:55 AM
User: npanos
DB: Lincolnshire

INVOICE DUE DATES 08/27/2019 - 09/09/2019
JOURNALIZED

BOTH OPEN AND PAID

AMOUNTDESCRIPTION
INVOICE
NUMBER
VENDOR NAME: GRAINGER, INC.

197.41Boltless Shelving - Storage in former cells9135717412
114.88Cherry Bomb Mechanic Handsoap9255307390

312.29TOTAL VENDOR GRAINGER, INC.

VENDOR NAME: GREEN ACRES LANDSCAPING
900.00Village Kiosk - Mow and Remove weeds by Village 2019-5313
950.00Old Mill Park Bocce Ball Court - Weed Removal & A2019-5312

2,200.00Balzer Park - Mulched & Weed Removal2019-5310
1,500.00Westminster Way - Prunning Job2019-5309

370.00Parks Mowing2019-5307
690.00Watered Trees @ Community Christian Church (5 V2019-5308

2,480.00Bike Path - Added Mulch & Weed Removal2019-5311

9,090.00TOTAL VENDOR GREEN ACRES LANDSCAPING

VENDOR NAME: HAYES MECHANICAL LLC
710.00Police Department AC Fix440930

710.00TOTAL VENDOR HAYES MECHANICAL LLC

VENDOR NAME: HOT GROUND GYM
700.00Heroes Night Obstacle Course8135869

700.00TOTAL VENDOR HOT GROUND GYM

VENDOR NAME: HYDROAIRE SERVICE, INC
6,636.00BLLS Pump #2 Repair17293

6,636.00TOTAL VENDOR HYDROAIRE SERVICE, INC

VENDOR NAME: IMRF
65,541.4708 2019 Member & Employer Contributions83146

65,541.47TOTAL VENDOR IMRF

VENDOR NAME: INTERSTATE ALL BATTERY CENTER
734.00Mobile Rack Batteries75586

734.00TOTAL VENDOR INTERSTATE ALL BATTERY CENTER

VENDOR NAME: INVOICE CLOUD
52.5009 2019 Paperless Utility Bills1185-2019_8

52.50TOTAL VENDOR INVOICE CLOUD

VENDOR NAME: KLUBER ARCHITECTS + ENGINEERS
612.50Soffit Replacement Village Hall & Publick Works En6905

612.50TOTAL VENDOR KLUBER ARCHITECTS + ENGINEERS

VENDOR NAME: LA POLICE GEAR
336.75Tourniquet, Bandage and QuikClot for medical kitsIV00435816

336.75TOTAL VENDOR LA POLICE GEAR

VENDOR NAME: LAKE FOREST POST OFFICE
60.59Q3 2019 Newsletter Postage2019Q3

60.59TOTAL VENDOR LAKE FOREST POST OFFICE

VENDOR NAME: LIBERTY JUSTICE CENTER
300.00Filing Fee Reimb18-1070

300.00TOTAL VENDOR LIBERTY JUSTICE CENTER

VENDOR NAME: LINCOLNSHIRE POSTMASTER
629.37Q3 2019 Newsletter Postage2019Q3

629.37TOTAL VENDOR LINCOLNSHIRE POSTMASTER

VENDOR NAME: LINCOLNSHIRE VILLAGE-PETTY CASH
60.7709/09/19 Petty Cash Reimbursements09092019



CUSTOM INVOICE REPORT FOR VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE 4/6Page:09/05/2019 11:55 AM
User: npanos
DB: Lincolnshire

INVOICE DUE DATES 08/27/2019 - 09/09/2019
JOURNALIZED

BOTH OPEN AND PAID

AMOUNTDESCRIPTION
INVOICE
NUMBER
VENDOR NAME: LINCOLNSHIRE VILLAGE-PETTY CASH

60.77TOTAL VENDOR LINCOLNSHIRE VILLAGE-PETTY CASH

VENDOR NAME: MADISON NATIONAL LIFE INS CO, INC.
1,237.1809 2019 Life Insurance Premiums1357918

1,237.18TOTAL VENDOR MADISON NATIONAL LIFE INS CO, INC.

VENDOR NAME: MANKOFF INDUSTRIES
660.00August UST Inspections4949

660.00TOTAL VENDOR MANKOFF INDUSTRIES

VENDOR NAME: MARQUEE EVENT RENTALS - CHICAGO
1,762.25Chairs, Tables & Generator for Red, White & Boom 186407

1,762.25TOTAL VENDOR MARQUEE EVENT RENTALS - CHICAG

VENDOR NAME: MICHAEL MERANDA JR.
120.008/20/19 ARB Meeting192308
120.008/26/19 RVB/COW Mtgs.193008

240.00TOTAL VENDOR MICHAEL MERANDA JR.

VENDOR NAME: MID-AMERICA SPORTS ADVANTAGE
337.02Soccer Goal Nets for North Park408199-00
619.47Soccer Goal Nets408199-01

956.49TOTAL VENDOR MID-AMERICA SPORTS ADVANTAGE

VENDOR NAME: MIDWEST METER INC.
160.98Pitmeter Adapters0114000
(75.00)Generator Head0114109-CM

85.98TOTAL VENDOR MIDWEST METER INC.

VENDOR NAME: MUNICIPAL GIS PARTNERS, INC.
5,065.84GIS staffing and services for August 20194669

5,065.84TOTAL VENDOR MUNICIPAL GIS PARTNERS, INC.

VENDOR NAME: NAPA AUTO PARTS
54.23Truck 730 Filters018643
71.88Transmission Fluid018644

126.11TOTAL VENDOR NAPA AUTO PARTS

VENDOR NAME: NAPA AUTO PARTS -WHE
660.64Transmission Jack540784

660.64TOTAL VENDOR NAPA AUTO PARTS -WHE

VENDOR NAME: NEOPOST USA INC
105.00Meter Rental 09/02/19 - 12/01/1956899836

105.00TOTAL VENDOR NEOPOST USA INC

VENDOR NAME: NIPSTA
200.00ICS-400 Training - Watson17728978

200.00TOTAL VENDOR NIPSTA

VENDOR NAME: NORTH EAST MULTI-REGIONAL TRAINING
500.0040 Hr Rifle Instructor Training - Holst260279

500.00TOTAL VENDOR NORTH EAST MULTI-REGIONAL TRAINI

VENDOR NAME: NORTH SHORE GAS
32.11NP Concession Gas Service 7-13-19 to 8-12-19603028481-01-08-19

32.11TOTAL VENDOR NORTH SHORE GAS

VENDOR NAME: NORTH SUBURBAN EMPLOYEE BENEFIT COO
80,860.12August 2019 Medical Insurance Premiums2019-08-Medical



CUSTOM INVOICE REPORT FOR VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE 5/6Page:09/05/2019 11:55 AM
User: npanos
DB: Lincolnshire

INVOICE DUE DATES 08/27/2019 - 09/09/2019
JOURNALIZED

BOTH OPEN AND PAID

AMOUNTDESCRIPTION
INVOICE
NUMBER
VENDOR NAME: NORTH SUBURBAN EMPLOYEE BENEFIT COO

80,860.12TOTAL VENDOR NORTH SUBURBAN EMPLOYEE BENE

VENDOR NAME: O'HERRON CO INC
76.38Uniform Shirts - Kantner1945722-IN

150.56Uniform Shirts - Hyde1947190-IN
48.35Uniform Hat - Temple1946324-IN

275.29TOTAL VENDOR O'HERRON CO INC

VENDOR NAME: PATRICK ENGINEERING
8,199.90Phase III Services for IL 22 Emergency Access21877.042-6

8,199.90TOTAL VENDOR PATRICK ENGINEERING

VENDOR NAME: PAYLOCITY
493.7209/09/19 Pay Services105467035

493.72TOTAL VENDOR PAYLOCITY

VENDOR NAME: PBA, INC./FLEXIBLE BENEFITS
200.002019-08 Flex claims & record keeping fees130892

200.00TOTAL VENDOR PBA, INC./FLEXIBLE BENEFITS

VENDOR NAME: POLLARDWATER
267.50Hydrant Adapter0146784

267.50TOTAL VENDOR POLLARDWATER

VENDOR NAME: PORTER LEE CORPORATION
1,499.00BEAST Evidence System Annual Software Support 22667

1,499.00TOTAL VENDOR PORTER LEE CORPORATION

VENDOR NAME: PREMIER DESIGN AND BUILD
1,603.69Refund of Construction Meter Deposit, less water usHydMtr

1,603.69TOTAL VENDOR PREMIER DESIGN AND BUILD

VENDOR NAME: RJN GROUP INC.
2,811.002019 Sanitary Sewer Program Professional Service339203

2,811.00TOTAL VENDOR RJN GROUP INC.

VENDOR NAME: ROSE PAVING CO.
75.00BD Bond Refund_445 Village Green Parking Lot_PCD Refund B19-0001P

75.00TOTAL VENDOR ROSE PAVING CO.

VENDOR NAME: US POSTAL SERVICE
1,000.00Meter Refill: POC Acct #805651308292019

1,000.00TOTAL VENDOR US POSTAL SERVICE

VENDOR NAME: USA BLUE BOOK
135.72Utility Markers982839
152.95Hydrant Ratchet978874
212.61Hydrant Sockets979321

501.28TOTAL VENDOR USA BLUE BOOK

VENDOR NAME: WAGNER & SON
39.92VH Plumbing Replacement1469155

39.92TOTAL VENDOR WAGNER & SON

VENDOR NAME: WASTE MANAGEMENT
1,625.00WM YW Stk #35501-36000, ID 1-40385-430016668772-2008-5

1,625.00TOTAL VENDOR WASTE MANAGEMENT

VENDOR NAME: WEST SIDE TRACTOR SALES CO
700.00Skid Steer Wire HarnessC01271
576.00Skid Steer Spare Cutting EdgeC01272



CUSTOM INVOICE REPORT FOR VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE 6/6Page:09/05/2019 11:55 AM
User: npanos
DB: Lincolnshire

INVOICE DUE DATES 08/27/2019 - 09/09/2019
JOURNALIZED

BOTH OPEN AND PAID

AMOUNTDESCRIPTION
INVOICE
NUMBER
VENDOR NAME: WEST SIDE TRACTOR SALES CO

379.04Skid Steer Snow Blower Stock PartsC01273

1,655.04TOTAL VENDOR WEST SIDE TRACTOR SALES CO

VENDOR NAME: WESTERN REMAC INC.
786.25Sign Posts55660

786.25TOTAL VENDOR WESTERN REMAC INC. 

VENDOR NAME: XEROX CORPORATION
25.87Meme Usage Charge (06/30/19 - 07/25/19)097825118

(33.79)Credit for Meme Usage Charge (06/30/19 - 07/25/1097825120
146.32Meme Base & Usage Charge (04/09/19 - 06/30/19)097825117
36.33Meme Base & Usage Charge (07/25/19 - 08/21/19)097942390
85.00Police Base Charge (07/21/19 - 08/30/19)097942389
57.00Nemo Base Charge (07/21/19 - 08/30/19)097942388

316.73TOTAL VENDOR XEROX CORPORATION

VENDOR NAME: YI WANG
63.40UB refund for account: 0105215031-02 ove09092019

63.40TOTAL VENDOR YI WANG

VENDOR NAME: YUDONG HU & JUNJIE ZHANG
825.00BD Tree Bond Refund - 5 Thornfields2019-08-29

825.00TOTAL VENDOR YUDONG HU & JUNJIE ZHANG

VENDOR NAME: ZABO LAWRENCE G.
116.46Senior Citizen Property Tx Relief Refund2018

116.46TOTAL VENDOR ZABO LAWRENCE G.

286,448.14GRAND TOTAL:



 
 
 
 
 
O n e  O l d e  H a l f  D a y  R o a d  
L i n c o l n s h i r e ,  I L  6 0 0 6 9  
www. l i n co l n sh i re i l . g ov  

 
 7.1 

MINUTES 
REGULAR VILLAGE BOARD MEETING 

Monday, August 26, 2019 
Present: 
Mayor Brandt    Trustee Harms Muth 
Trustee Grujanac   Trustee Hancock  
Trustee Leider    Trustee Pantelis 
Trustee Raizin    Village Clerk Mastandrea 
Village Attorney Simon  Village Manager Burke 
Chief of Police Leonas  Public Works Director Woodbury 
Village Treasurer/Finance Director Peterson Assistant Village Manager/Community & 
Planning & Development Manager Zozulya  Economic Development Director Gilbertson 
Building Official Jesse 
 
ROLL CALL 
Mayor Brandt called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m., and Village Clerk Mastandrea called the  
Roll.  
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
2.0    APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

2.1 Approval of the August 12, 2019 Regular Village Board Meeting Minutes 
 

Trustee Grujanac moved and Trustee Harms Muth seconded the motion to approve 
the minutes of the Regular Village Board Meeting of August 12, 2019 as presented. 
The roll call vote was as follows: AYES: Trustees Grujanac, Harms Muth, Pantelis, 
and Raizin. NAYS: None. ABSENT: Trustees Hancock and Leider. ABSTAIN: None. 
Mayor Brandt declared the motion carried. 

 
3.0  REPORTS OF OFFICERS 

3.1   Mayor’s Report  
3.11 Heroes Night 
  
 Mayor Brandt thanked the Police Department, District 103, Public Works and 

staff for an outstanding Heroes Night. Mayor Brandt noted over $2,000 was 
raised for SmashSmard. Mayor Brandt stated there was good feedback and 
most wanted the event to go longer. Mayor Brandt noted Commander Covelli 
should be commended for her amazing work in coordinating the event.   

 
3.12 Summer Slam 
 
 Mayor Brandt invited members of Summer Slam committee to provide a 

presentation. 
 



Page 2 
MINUTES – Regular Village Board Meeting 
August 26, 2019 
 
 
 

 Summer Slam committee members provided a presentation on the past 2019 
tournament noting over $20,000 was raised from the event. $5,000 of the 
money raised is going to the travel baseball program. A portion of the money 
raised will benefit the American Foundation for Suicide, and a check was 
presented to Ms. Steinberger. 

 
 Ms. Steinberger thanked the committee for being so supportive and working 

so hard. 
 
 Mayor Brandt thanked the committee for their work in raising the money.  
 
 Ms. Courtney Collins, Area Director for American Foundation for Suicide 

provided a brief summary of how the funds would be used and thanked the 
committee members for raising the money for such an important cause. 

 
The Summer Slam Committee requested permission to hold the next 
tournament June 24 – 28, 2020 at North Park. New members for the 
committee introduced themselves to the Board.  
 
The Committee noted the money for 2020 will be raised for SmashSmard and 
the Riverside Foundation.  
 
Mayor Brandt noted Lee Fell and his wife Beth started Summer Slam and 
were both named Citizens of the Year for 2019. Mayor Brandt noted they truly 
are local heroes.   

 
3.2 Village Clerk’s Report – None 

 
3.3   Village Treasurer’s Report  

      3.31 Revenues and Expenditures for the Month of July, 2019 
 

Village Manager Burke noted the Revenue and Expenditure Summary is 
included in the Board packet; and all revenues and expenditures have been 
properly recorded for the month of July 2019. 

 
3.4 Village Manager’s Report – None 

 
4.0   PAYMENT OF BILLS 

4.1   Bills Presented for Payment on August 26, 2019 in the amount of $472,814.97 
  
 Village Manager Burke provided a summary of the August 26, 2019 bills prelist 

presented for payment with the total being $472,814.97. The total amount is based 
on $109,630.62 for General Fund; $331,422.41 for Water & Sewer Fund; $23,465.14 
for Vehicle Maintenance Fund, and $8,296.80 for General Capital Fund.  

 
  Trustee Grujanac moved and Trustee Harms Muth seconded the motion to approve 

the bills prelist dated August 26, 2019 as presented. The roll call vote was as follows: 
AYES: Trustees Grujanac, Pantelis, Raizin, and Harms Muth. NAYS: None.  



Page 3 
MINUTES – Regular Village Board Meeting 
August 26, 2019 
 
 
 

ABSENT: Trustees Hancock and Leider. ABSTAIN: None. Mayor Brandt declared 
the motion carried.  

 
5.0  CITIZENS WISHING TO ADDRESS THE BOARD (on agenda items only) - None 
 
6.0  PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS - None 
 
7.0 CONSENT AGENDA  

7.1 Approval of Workers Compensation Insurance Coverage for the Period of 
January 1, 2020 to April 30, 2021 with the Municipal Insurance Cooperative 
(MICA) in the Amount of $209,559.00 (Village of Lincolnshire) 

 
7.2 Approval of a Contract for the 2019 Sanitary and Storm Sewer Lining Project 

with Hoerr Construction of Peoria, IL, in an Amount not to Exceed $89,265.84 
(Village of Lincolnshire) 

 
7.3 Approval of a Contract with American Underground, Glenview, IL, for Sanitary 

and Storm Sewer Televising and Cleaning in the Amount of $67,753.41 (Village 
of Lincolnshire)  

 
7.4 Approval of an Internal Fee Waiver – Stadium Hall of Fame and Transition 

House Pergola Project (Adlai E. Stevenson High School – District 125) 
 
 Trustee Grujanac moved and Trustee Harms Muth seconded the motion to approve 

the Consent Agenda. The roll call vote was as follows: AYES: Trustees Grujanac, 
Pantelis, Raizin, and Harms Muth. NAYS: None.  ABSENT: Trustees Hancock and 
Leider. ABSTAIN: None. Mayor Brandt declared the motion carried. 

 
8.0  ITEMS OF GENERAL BUSINESS 

8.1 Planning, Zoning & Land Use 
8.2 Finance and Administration  
8.3 Public Works 
8.4 Police 
8.5 Parks and Recreation 
8.6 Judiciary and Personnel 

 
  9.0 REPORTS OF SPECIAL COMMITTEES 
10.0   UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
11.0 NEW BUSINESS  
12.0 EXECUTIVE SESSION 
13.0 ADJOURNMENT 

 Trustee Grujanac moved and Trustee Harms Muth seconded the motion to adjourn. The 
voice vote was unanimous and Mayor Brandt declared the meeting adjourned at 7:14 p.m. 

  
 Respectfully submitted, 
 VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE 
 
 
 



Page 4 
MINUTES – Regular Village Board Meeting 
August 26, 2019 
 
 
 

 
 
 Barbara Mastandrea 
 Village Clerk 



 
 
 
 

O n e  O l d e  H a l f  D a y  R o a d  
L i n c o l n s h i r e ,  I L  6 0 0 6 9  
www. l i n co l n sh i re i l . g ov  

 
7.2 

MINUTES 
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING 

Monday, August 26, 2019   
Present: 
Mayor Brandt      Trustee Harms Muth 
Trustee Grujanac    Trustee Hancock 
Trustee Leider     Trustee Pantelis 
Trustee Raizin     Village Clerk Mastandrea    
Village Attorney Simon   Village Manager Burke 
Finance Director/Treasurer Peterson   Public Works Director Woodbury 
Chief of Police Leonas   Assistant Village Manager/Community & 
Planning & Development Manager Zozulya  Economic Development Director Gilbertson 
Building Official Jesse          

        
ROLL CALL 
Mayor Brandt called the meeting to order at 7:15 p.m., and Village Clerk Mastandrea called the 
Roll. 
 
2.0 APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

2.1 Acceptance of the August 12, 2019 Committee of the Whole Meeting 
Minutes 
 
The minutes of the August 12, 2019 Committee of the Whole Meeting were 
approved as submitted. 
 

3.0 ITEMS OF GENERAL BUSINESS 
   

3.1 Planning, Zoning and Land Use 
3.11 Consideration of Preliminary Evaluation Regarding an Amendment 

to an Existing Special Use for Sedgebrook Planned Unit 
Development to Allow Temporary Events (Sedgebrook Propco SL 
LLC – 800-890 and 960 Audubon Way) 

 
 Planning & Development Manager Zozulya provided a summary of a 

preliminary evaluation regarding an amendment to an existing Special 
Use for Sedgebrook Planned Unit Development to allow two temporary 
events. Sedgebrook would like to have a car show on September 28 
and would like to expedite this request. If the PUD is amended the 
events would comply with the existing code.  

 
 Mr. Dan Harrington, Executive Director at Sedgebrook introduced Bill 
Schneider, Director of Community Relations at Sedgebrook. 

 
Mr. Harrington provided a presentation regarding their request to amend 
the existing Special Use for Sedgebrook Planned Unit Development to 



Page 2 
MINUTES – Committee of the Whole Meeting 
August 26, 2019 
 
 

allow two temporary events annually at Sedgebrook. Mr. Harrington 
provided a map indicating where the proposed car show would take 
place along with parking and traffic for attendance.   
 
Trustee Raizin asked if they had an estimate on the amount of people 
who would attend. Mr. Harrington stated last year, only the residents, a 
few family members, and staff attended.  
 
Mayor Brandt noted she and some of staff attended an event at Radford 
Green recently, and there is ample parking for events. Mayor Brandt 
also noted there are some vintage car groups in the Village that staff 
can put Sedgebrook in contact with to possibly include in the event. 
Trustee Grujanac noted there may be a car club at Stevenson High 
School to reach out to.  
 
Trustee Raizin asked if there would be any food or drinks served at the 
event. Mr. Harrington noted Sedgebrook would offer coffee, donuts and 
a hydration station for the people involved with the car show. Planning & 
Development Manager Zozulya stated if they were to invite Food 
Trucks, Sedgebrook would need to amend their request. Mr. Harrington 
stated he would not want to amend the request.  
 
It was the consensus of the Board to place this item on the Regular 
Village Board Agenda for a public hearing and potential approval at the 
September 23, 2019 Regular Village Board Meeting. 

 
3.12 Preliminary Evaluation Regarding Text Amendments to Single-

Family Residential Bulk Regulations in Title 6, Chapter 5A (R1, R2 
and R3 Single-Family Residence Districts) and 5B (R2A Single-
Family Residence District) of the Lincolnshire Village Code (Village 
of Lincolnshire) 

 
 Assistant Village Manager/Community & Economic Development (CED) 

Director Gilbertson summarized the preliminary evaluation regarding 
text amendments to single-family residential bulk regulations in Title 6, 
Chapter 5A (R1, R2, and R3 single-family residence districts) and 5B of 
the Lincolnshire Village Code. Building Official Jesse also provided a 
presentation of single-family residential bulk regulations.  

 
 A brief conversation followed regarding the areas in Lincolnshire with 

80,000 square foot lots. Mayor Brandt asked if square footage 
calculations shared in the presentation includes garage and basement. 
Building Official Jesse stated living spaces in the code is defined as 
above-grade and granting a 400 square foot credit for a garage. Trustee 
Harms Muth stated two-story family rooms and foyers are included in 
the calculation of living space. Building Official Jesse noted this area is 
included in calculations for floor area ratio (FAR) as the two story open 
area for foyers or living spaces does have the potential to contribute to 
the appearance of bulk.  Building Official Jesse noted basement areas 



Page 3 
MINUTES – Committee of the Whole Meeting 
August 26, 2019 
 
 

are typically below grade and create no sense of bulk or mass. 
 
 Trustee Pantelis asked what the square footage of the new homes at 

the Manors of Whytegate are so she has something to compare. 
Planning & Development Manager Zozulya stated the Manors of 
Whytegate is zoned R2A, and the average lot size is approximately 
29,000 square feet with the average home size being 5,400 square feet. 
Mayor Brandt asked if the 400 square foot credit for a garage would be 
factored into a three-car garage. Building Official Jesse stated 400 
square feet is the size of a typical two-car garage, and the square 
footage credit applies to any size garage. 

 
Building Official Jesse continued his presentation with square footage 
comparisons in Lincolnshire. He proceeded to review established front 
yard setbacks and explain how setbacks in residential areas are 
defined. A conversation ensued regarding the reason for possibly 
changing FAR and square footage caps. Size of homes on the size of 
lots were discussed along with the perceptions of established character 
in neighborhoods in the Village. Trustee Grujanac noted concern 
regarding the area she lives in losing its character as a result of 
teardowns/rebuilds. Other areas in the Village were brought up as 
possible future concern. Planning & Development Manager Zozulya 
further explained the zoning for the Manors of Whytegate and 
subdivision’s R2A zoning classification which was considered as a way 
to address environmentally sensitive conditions. Planning & 
Development Manager Zozulya noted R2A zoning classifications require 
a more rigorous planning process and review and approval process. 
 
Building Official Jesse completed his presentation with possible 
revisions to FAR and square foot caps. A conversation followed 
regarding possible legal nonconforming structures if the changes are 
approved. Trustee Grujanac asked if there are any homes currently 
being built that would be legally non-conforming if the Board approved 
the FAR and square footage caps. Building Official Jesse stated any 
current construction must follow current code requirements and would 
be subject to future versions of the Village code if property owners 
desire additional square footage. Planning & Development Manager 
Zozulya noted a handful of homes in the R3 zoning district are legally 
non-conforming as a result of the bulk regulation code revisions from 
2007.  
 
Trustee Grujanac asked if the Zoning Board has reviewed these 
recommendations. Assistant Village Manager/CED Director Gilbertson 
stated the Zoning Board has not seen these specific recommendations. 
He further clarified the process, noting if the Village Board is amenable 
to these specific recommendations, this would go to the Zoning Board 
for review then back to the Village Board for review and possible 
approval.  
 



Page 4 
MINUTES – Committee of the Whole Meeting 
August 26, 2019 
 
 

Trustee Harms Muth stated she did not see the need to change 
anything related to bulk regulations at this time. 
 
Trustee Grujanac stated she would recommend this be referred to the 
Zoning Board. Trustee Raizin stated she would like to know more about 
the issues and would be open to referring this to the Zoning Board. 
 
Trustee Pantelis noted concern regarding how the homeowners would 
feel being legally nonconforming and not being able to add on to their 
homes. A conversation ensued regarding nonconforming structures.  
 
Trustee Raizin asked if the Zoning Board would only be reviewing 
changes to FAR. Village Manager Burke clarified the recommendation 
in the memo is for the Zoning Board to review FAR and square footage 
caps. Village Attorney Simon noted individual homes do not go through 
architectural review, so the goal is to establish a set of rules that can be 
applied consistently. 

 
It was the consensus of the Board to refer this item to the Zoning Board 
for review.  

 
3.13 Consideration and Discussion of Lake County Solar Winds Task 

Force Participation and Potential SolSmart Application (Village of 
Lincolnshire) 

 
 Building Official Jesse provided a summary of Lake County solar winds 

task force participation and potential SolSmart application. Staff does 
not believe additional changes to Village Code are warranted at this 
time. The SolSmart designation program awards ratings of bronze, 
silver, or gold to communities who demonstrate a commitment to be 
“open for solar business.” Should the Mayor and Board of Trustees 
direct staff to pursue participation in the program, staff believes a rating 
of bronze is achievable with our current codes and processes. Building 
Official Jesse noted there is no cost to participate.  

 
 It was the consensus of the Board for staff to move forward with the 
application. 

 
3.2 Finance and Administration    
3.3 Public Works 
3.4 Public Safety 
3.5 Parks and Recreation 
3.6 Judiciary and Personnel 

 
4.0 UNFINISHED BUSINESS  

4.1 Recreational Cannabis 
 

Village Manager Burke noted since the last time recreational cannabis was 
discussed, a lot of information has been shared with the Board and staff will be 



Page 5 
MINUTES – Committee of the Whole Meeting 
August 26, 2019 
 
 

bringing this back to the Board in September. Village Manager Burke asked 
the Board if they had any other specific information they would like staff to 
research regarding this topic prior to September to let him know.  

 
5.0 NEW BUSINESS   
6.0 EXECUTIVE SESSION 
7.0 ADJOURNMENT 

 
Trustee Grujanac moved and Trustee Harms Muth seconded the motion to adjourn. 
Upon a voice vote, the motion was approved unanimously and Mayor Brandt declared 
the meeting adjourned at 8:22 p.m. 

 Respectfully submitted, 
 VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE 
 
 

 
 
 Barbara Mastandrea 

 Village Clerk 



 

Agenda Item 

7.3 RVB Consent 

 

V:\Shared_Files\Cover_Sheet\2019\2019_09_09_RVB_Stevenson_FeeWaiver.doc 

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 
Regular Village Board  

September 9, 2019 
 

Subject:  Adlai E. Stevenson High School District 125, 1 Stevenson Drive and 
16139 Port Clinton Road 
 

Action Requested: Approval of an Internal Village Fee Waiver – Directional & 
Identification Signs  
 

Petitioner:  Adlai E. Stevenson High School District 125 
 

Originated By/Contact: Tonya Zozulya, Planning & Development Manager  
 

 
Background  
 Adlai E. Stevenson High School District 125 (School District 125) requests a waiver of 

internal Village fees associated with the replacement of directional signs throughout the 
school campus (1 Stevenson Drive) and installation of a new Transition House identification 
sign (16139 Port Clinton Road) (see Document 1).  

 
 Section 5-3-2A of the Lincolnshire Village Code allows the Village Board to waive internal 

Village fees (up to $5,000 per development/project) for charitable organizations (see 
attached Document 3). Out-of-pocket costs for outside consultant reviews or inspections, 
including applicable attorney's fees, are ineligible for waiver and are applied to a petitioner’s 
escrow account.  

 
 School District 125 will present a sign variation request at the September 9, 2019 

Committee of the Whole for a courtesy presentation. A public hearing at the Architectural 
Review Board is tentatively scheduled for September 24, 2019. Final approval by the Village 
Board is anticipated in October. The Transition House ground identification sign is expected 
to be reviewed by the ARB on September 24th as well (note: School District 125 is not 
seeking variations for this sign, so the ARB approval would be final. The ARB is responsible 
for review and approval of all new code-compliant ground signs).  

 
 Based on the code requirements and the W-9 form provided by School District 125 (see 

attached Document 2), these proposed projects are eligible for an internal Village fee waiver 
not to exceed $5,000. If approved, the fee waiver will be applied to the following internal 
Village fees: 
 
Application Fees: $250.00 
Plan Review/Escrow Fees - 2 hours @ $79.19 overhead rate (estimated): $158.38 
Building Permit Review Fees (estimated): $1,192.00 

Total Fee Waiver: $1,600.38 
 

 In 2019, the Village Board has waived $2,037.58 in fees for School District 125. With this 
request, the 2019 fee waiver total will be $3,637.96. Since 2013, a total of $11,167 is 
expected to be waived for various Stevenson projects, as shown in the below chart:  

 
 



 

Agenda Item 

7.3 RVB Consent 

 

V:\Shared_Files\Cover_Sheet\2019\2019_09_09_RVB_Stevenson_FeeWaiver.doc 

Year  Project  Total  
2013 Half Day Road monument sign replacement  $1,061  
2017 East building addition & 16139 Port Clinton annex* $3,115  
2017 Press box* $328  
2018 Transition house  $900  
2018 Port Clinton Road widening $2,125  
2019 Parking lot construction $1,569  
2019 Stadium Hall of Fame & Transition House pergola $469  
2019 Directional & identification signs  $1,600  
                                                                         TOTAL $11,167  

 
 Historically, the Village Board has waived internal fees for other School District 125 projects, 

as well as School District 103, Vernon Area Library District, Vernon Township, and the 
Lincolnshire-Riverwoods Fire Protection District.  

 
Recommendation:  
Approval of a request to waive $1,600.38 in Village internal review fees for the directional sign 
replacement, in accordance with Village Code Section 5-3-2A.  
 
Reports and Documents Attached: 
 Document 1: School District 125 fee waiver letter dated September 9, 2019. 
 Document 2: School District 125’s W-9 form.  
 Document 3: Village Code Section 5-3-2A.  
 

Meeting History 
Regular Village Board September 9, 2019 

 



tzozulya
Text Box
DOCUMENT 1



tzozulya
Text Box
DOCUMENT 2



 
VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE  TITLE 5-3: BUILDING FEES AND CHARGES 
Revised 12/13/2010 Page 1 

 
      CHAPTER 3 

         BUILDING FEES AND CHARGES 
 
SECTION: 
 
5-3-1: Fees for Permits 
5-3-2: Reimbursement of Professional Review Fees 
5-3-2A: Not-For-Profit Fees 
5-3-3: Additional Fees 
5-3-4: Water and Sewer Connection Charges 
5-3-4-1: Connection Charges Outside Corporate Limits 
 
 
 
5-3-1   FEES FOR PERMITS: The fee for a building permit to construct, alter or repair 

any building or other structure or its service equipment in the Village shall be 
as established in the Comprehensive Fee Schedule set forth in Chapter 15 of 
Title 1 of this Code.  (Ord. Amd. 96-1467-51 eff. 12/9/96) 

 
A. Applicants for a building permit shall submit the estimated construction cost of 

the proposed improvements. The building official shall use the most recent 
copy of the International Building Code building valuation data report on file for 
verifying any estimates.  The building official may request a verified statement 
of actual costs upon completion of the work.  In the event the actual cost 
exceeds the estimate, an additional fee based upon such actual costs in 
accordance with this Section shall be paid. 

 
5-3-2: REIMBURSEMENT OF PROFESSIONAL REVIEW FEES:  Except as 

otherwise provided for in this Chapter, Applicants for a building permit shall be 
required to remain in compliance with Title 1, Chapter 8, Article D, as a 
condition of receiving a building permit.(Amd. Ord. 07-2981-09, eff. 4/23/07) 

 
5-3-2A:   NOT FOR PROFIT FEES (Ord. 94-1345-29 eff. 7/11/94) 
 
A. Any charitable organization may file an application with the Village for a waiver 

of fees imposed by the Village.  The application for waiver of fees shall be in 
writing and shall contain all the information necessary to determine the 
applicant=s eligibility under this Ordinance and identify the fees and amounts 
which the applicant is requesting to be waived.  The Board of Trustees shall 
review the application and satisfy itself of the sufficiency of the application and 
eligibility of the applicant at a Committee-of-the Whole meeting, and shall then 
formally approve or disapprove the application at scheduled regular meeting of 
the Village Board of Trustees.  The application shall be filed with the Village 

tzozulya
Text Box
DOCUMENT 3



 
VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE  TITLE 5-3: BUILDING FEES AND CHARGES 
Revised 12/13/2010 Page 2 

Clerk at least five (5) days before the date of the Committee-of-the-Whole 
meeting at which the application is to be considered initially. 

 
There shall be no waiver of fees in excess of $5,000 per development or 
project. 

 
B. DEFINITIONS 
CHARITABLE  
ORGANIZATION 

Shall mean any not for profit corporation, association or 
foundation organized and operated exclusively for religious 
purposes, charitable purposes, or for the prevention of 
cruelty to children or animals.(Amd. Ord. 98-1543-05, eff. 
3/9/98) 

FEES  Shall mean those fees that would otherwise be required for, or 
incurred in connection with, planning, zoning and building 
permits in regard to construction, restoration, replacement, 
renovation, remodeling, addition or repair of a structure, but not 
including sewer and water connection fees and fees or charges 
recovering direct out-of-pocket Village expenses. 

OUT-OF-POCKET 
VILLAGE  
EXPENSES 

Shall mean any costs incurred by the Village for outside 
services of independent contractors related to the processing  
of any petitions or permits, including, but not limited to, 
postage, legal fees, costs of legal notices and the cost of any 
inspections or analysis required by the Village from outside 
consultants. 

5-3-3: ADDITIONAL FEES:  
 
A. Lake County Sanitary Sewer Fee:  Applicants for connection to, or modification 

of, the  Village sanitary sewer system shall pay connection fees as required by 
the County of Lake.  The Building Official shall collect such fee on behalf of the 
County and transfer such funds to the County on a schedule in accordance 
with the requirements of the County. 

 
B. Outside Agency & Consultant Fees:  Applicants for Building Permits shall 

reimburse the Village for all costs incurred by contracted or specialized 
reviewers necessary to ensure that the application, design, plans and 
specifications meet the requirements of the Village.  The Village reserves the 
right to request a specialized review for any project submitted.  In the event 
that such a review is required, the Village shall make every effort to inform the 
applicant of the need for a specialized review that might not typically be 
required, prior to securing the Consultant / Agency for said review. 

 
C. Recapture Fees:  Applicants shall pay any and all recapture fees prior to 

issuance of a permit in accordance with the applicable Recapture Agreement. 
(Amd. Ord. 09-3090-13, eff. 03/23/09) 



 

Agenda Item 
  8.41 RVB 

 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

Regular Village Board  
September 9, 2019 

 
Subject:  Intergovernmental Agreement between the State of Illinois, Illinois 

Department of Transportation and Village of Lincolnshire 
 

Action Requested: Approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement between the State of 
Illinois, Illinois Department of Transportation (IDOT) and Village of 
Lincolnshire for Sustained Traffic Enforcement Program (STEP) 
Grant for Federal Fiscal Year 2020 (Waiver of First Reading)  
 

Originated 
By/Contact: 

Joseph Leonas, Chief of Police  
 

 
Summary/Background  
The Village of Lincolnshire has been awarded the Sustained Traffic Enforcement Program 
(STEP) Grant for the Federal Fiscal year 2020, which runs from October 1, 2019 to September 
30, 2020.  The award is in the amount of $38,222.84. The award is used to pay for overtime 
costs, as well as supplies and equipment associated with specific holiday traffic enforcement 
campaigns.   
 
The STEP grant focuses on high visibility enforcement on specific times and dates of the year. 
The enforcement efforts are designed to reduce fatalities and serious injuries on some of the 
deadliest times of the year for vehicle travel. There are six required holiday campaigns and 
additional enforcement options.  
 
The Village of Lincolnshire police department will participate in the following holiday campaigns:  
 

• Thanksgiving (Occupant Protection)  
• Christmas/New Year’s (Impaired Driving)  
• St. Patrick’s Day (Impaired Driving)  
• Memorial Day (Occupant Protection)  
• Independence Day (Impaired Driving)  
• Labor Day (Impaired Driving)  

 
Recommendation:  
Approval of the Intergovernmental Agreement between the State of Illinois, Illinois Department of 
Transportation and Village of Lincolnshire 
 
Reports and Documents Attached: 
Inter-Governmental Agreement between the State of Illinois, Illinois Department of 
Transportation and Village of Lincolnshire. 
 
 

Meeting History 
Regular Village Board September 9, 2019 

 


















































































	1.0 RVB Agenda
	3.11_2019_09_09_RVB_NationalChamberWeek_Proclamation
	4.1_2019_09_09_Bills
	Prelist_APBankTrf.xlsx
	CustomInvoiceReport

	7.1 08-26-2019 RVB Minutes
	7.2 08-26-2019 COW Minutes
	7.3_2019_09_09_StevensonFeeWaiver
	8.41 IDOT_STEP_GRANT_IGA
	8.41 IDOT_STEP_GRANT_IGA
	2019_09_09_RVB_IDOT Grant


	Return to Agenda: 


